
 
Telephone Enquiries: Michael Cunliffe, 01254 380109 
Email: michael.cunliffe@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Wednesday, 7 November 2018 

Page 1 of 3  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Council 
 
Thursday, 15 November 2018 at 7.00 pm, 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Councillor Mohammad Ayub (Mayor) in the Chair,  
Councillors Judith Addison, Josh Allen, Lisa Allen, Noordad Aziz, Jean Battle, Sara Britcliffe, 
Stephen Button, Clare Cleary, Andrew Clegg, Loraine Cox, Paul Cox, Munsif Dad, Tony Dobson, 
Stewart Eaves, Diane Fielding, Melissa Fisher, Glen Harrison, June Harrison, Marlene Haworth, 
Stephanie Haworth, Eamonn Higgins, Terry Hurn, Abdul Khan, Michael Miller, Gareth Molineux, 
Jenny Molineux, Tim O'Kane, Dave Parkins, Bernadette Parkinson, Miles Parkinson, 
Joyce Plummer, Kath Pratt, Jeff Scales and Paddy Short 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for absence   
 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

3.   Announcements   
 
 

4.   Confirmation of Minutes  (Pages 5 - 12) 
 
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the Council meeting held on the 20th 
September 2018 (attached). 
 

Public Document Pack



Page 2 of 3 

 

5.   Question Time   
 
To deal with any questions submitted under Council Procedure Rule 2.2(vi). 
 

6.   Report of Urgent Council Decision: Proposed new rail passenger service from 
Leeds to East Lancashire  (Pages 13 - 16) 
 
Report attached. 
 

7.   Minutes of Cabinet  (Pages 17 - 28) 
 
To receive the Minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on the 10th October 2018 (attached). 
 
Rules of Debate 
 

 The Leader of the Council will move he Minutes, the Deputy Leader of the Council 
will second the Minutes. 

 Non-Executive Members will be invited to make comment or ask questions on the 
Minutes (5 Minutes). 

 Cabinet Members will be invited to make comment and respond to any points 
raised (5 Minutes). 

 The Leader of the Council will be given up to 15 Minutes to respond and to 
answer any questions raised. 

 

8.   Minutes of Committees  (Pages 29 - 58) 
 
To receive the Minutes of Committees and Sub-Committees, as set out below:- 
 
Rules of Debate 
 

 The Leader of the Council will introduce the Minute Book as a whole. 

 Any Member may raise any issue form the Minutes;  the Chair of the relevant 
Committee may respond (5 Minutes). 

 The Leader of the Council will close the debate (5 Minutes). 
 

 

Meeting (Municipal Year 2018/19) Date 

Judicial Committee (Private Hire & Hackney Carriage 
Licensing) 

5th September 2018 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee (Resources) 11th September 2018 

Planning Committee 12th September 2018 

Judicial Committee (Private Hire & Hackney Carriage 
Licensing) 

1st October 2018 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee (Communities & 5th October 2018 



Page 3 of 3 

 

Wellbeing) 

Planning Committee 10th October 2018 

Standards Committee 16th October 2018 

Judicial Committee (Private Hire & Hackney Carriage 
Licensing) 

30th October 2018 

Management Review Committee 31st October 2018 

 
 

9.   Motion(s) submitted on Notice  (Pages 59 - 62) 
 
To consider any Motions for debate in accordance with Council Procedure Rule A9. 
 

 
 

 
Chief Executive 
Scaitcliffe House, 
Ormerod Street, 
ACCRINGTON BB5 OPF 
 
Wednesday, 7 November 2018 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
1 

 
COUNCIL 

 

 
Thursday, 20th September, 2018 

 
Present:  Councillor Mohammad Ayub (Mayor), Councillors Judith Addison, 

Josh Allen, Lisa Allen, Noordad Aziz, Jean Battle, Sara Britcliffe, 
Stephen Button, Clare Cleary, Andrew Clegg, Loraine Cox, Paul Cox, 
Munsif Dad, Tony Dobson, Stewart Eaves, Diane Fielding, Melissa Fisher, 
Glen Harrison, June Harrison, Marlene Haworth, Stephanie Haworth, 
Eamonn Higgins, Abdul Khan, Michael Miller, Gareth Molineux, 
Jenny Molineux, Tim O'Kane, Bernadette Parkinson, Miles Parkinson, 
Joyce Plummer, Kath Pratt, Jeff Scales and Paddy Short 
 

Apologies: Councillors Terry Hurn and Dave Parkins 

  

 
128 Apologies for absence 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillor Terry Hurn and Dave Parkins. 
 

129 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

130 Announcements 
 
1) The late Jessie Hall 
 
The Mayor paid tribute to former Councillor Miss Jessie Hall MBE who had passed away 
last month.  
 
Miss Hall had been a Hyndburn councillor representing the residents of Great Harwood 
from 1974 to 1987 and was the Mayor of Hyndburn in 1977/78. She became an Honorary 
Alderman of the Borough in 2004 and her funeral was held on the 24th August at St 
Hubert’s Church, Great Harwood. 
 
Councillors Miles Parkinson, Tony Dobson and Gareth Molineux also added tributes. 
 
A minutes silence was held as a mark of respect. 
 
2) Onward Homes 
 
On behalf of the Leader of the Council, Councillor Clare Cleary, portfolio holder for Housing 
and Regeneration referred to concerns raised at the last Council meeting about Onward 
Homes and the lack of information provided to Members.  
 
The Regional Director of Onward Homes had agreed to meet up to 10 Councillors on the 
25th October and provide a tour of their new offices along with the new Neighbourhood 
Manager. 
 
3) Change in Order of Business 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

The Mayor reported that he intended to change the order of business to be considered and 
Items 13 and 14 on the supplemental agenda would now be taken before Item 10 of the 
Agenda. 
 

131 Confirmation of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the Council meetings held on 30th June 2018 and 5th July 2018 were 
submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes of the Council meetings held on 30th  

June 2018 and 5th July 2018 be approved as a correct record. 
 

132 Question Time 
 
The Mayor reported that the following questions had been received from Councillors 
Marlene Haworth and Josh Allen in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 2.2(vi).  The 
questions were put to the Leader of the Council. 
 
“(1) At a time when residents are looking for honesty, credibility and transparency could the 
Leader of the Council explain why he didn’t think it was important to notify Councillors of the 
Oswaldtwistle Area Forum, which included two from his own party, about the expenditure of 
over £25,000 from their budget?;  and, 
 
(2) Can the leader of the Council provide any reassurance to Hyndburn residents that they 
will not be unlawfully targeted by Kingdom Services as has been reported by various other 
authorities, residents and newspapers, and further more will there be any procedures in 
place to stop this from happening in the instance it does occur?” 
 
In relation to Question (1), the Leader of the Council responded that he and the Deputy 
Leader of the Council were away on holiday at the time the request was made by Officers 
and delegated authority for approval was made by Councillor Cleary on their behalf. 
 
In relation to the reply given, Councillor Haworth asked a supplementary question and 
stated the Council’s constitution and the Leader’s responsibilities for communication and 
requested that the money be reinstated back into the Oswaldtwistle Area Forum.  
 
The Leader of the Council gave details of where money had been spent throughout 
Oswaldtwistle and how he had honoured three bids that had been made even though there 
were not the required finances left after the expenditure of over £25,000 from the budget. 
 
In relation to Question (2), the Leader of the Council responded that there would be a two 
week pilot period of education with warnings given and if an area required monitoring then 
please inform the Deputy Leader of the Council of the details who would pass on the 
information to the contractors. 
 
Arising from the reply given, Councillor Allen was happy with the proposed pilot scheme 
and that litter and fly tipping was a major issue and hoped the scheme would work well for 
the Council and borough of Hyndburn. 
 

133 Delegation of  Responsibility  to Planning Committee 
 
The Leader of the Council submitted a report to confer delegated authority on the Planning 
Committee allowing it to exercise the  functions contained in  sections 150 and 151 of the  
Housing and  Planning   Act  2016  and  the associated powers in The Town and Country 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
3 

Planning ( Brownfield Land Register) Regulations.2017 and the Town and Country Planning 
( Permission in Principle) Order 2017. 
 
Resolved (1) That the responsibilities contained in section 150 and 

151 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016 and the 
associated powers in the Town and Country Planning 
(Brownfield land Register) Regulations 2017 and the 
Town and Country Planning (Permission in Principle) 
Order 2017 be delegated to the Planning  Committee;  
and,   

 
 (2) That the Executive Director (Legal and Democratic 

Services) be authorised to effect the necessary changes 
to the Council’s Constitution in order to reflect this 
decision. 

 
134 Appointment of Co-optees Overview & Scrutiny 

 
Councillor Noordad Aziz, Chair of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee and 
Councillor Glen Harrison, Chair of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee submitted a report to recommend Co-opted Members on to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees. 
 
Resolved (1) That the re-appointments of Co-optees to the Resources 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Honorary Alderman 
Paul Barton and Honorary Alderman Ian Ormerod be 
approved; and,   

 
 (2) That the following new appointment of Co-optee to both 

the Resources and the Communities and Wellbeing 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees, Honorary Freeman 
Bernard Dawson be approved. 

 
135 Amendment To Committee Terms Of Reference 

 
The Leader of the Council submitted a report seeking approval for a change to the terms of 
reference of the Management Review Committee. 
 
Resolved - That the revised terms of reference of the Management 

Review be approved. 
 

136 Policy for Adding Names to War Memorials 
 
The Leader of the Council submitted a report for a proposed policy for considering requests 
to add names to war memorials. 
 
Resolved (1) That the policy as set out in Appendix 1 of the report be 

approved; and,   
 
 (2) That the Chief Executive, following consultation with the 

Leader of the Council, relevant Portfolio Holder and the 
Council’s Armed Forces Champion, be given delegated 
authority to approve the addition of names to relevant 
war memorials in Hyndburn. 

 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

 
4 

137 Corporate Strategy 2018 to 2023 
 
The Leader of the Council submitted the Corporate Strategy 2018-2023. 
 
Resolved (1) That the Corporate Strategy as set out in Appendix 1 of 

the report and the summary version as set out in 
Appendix 2 of the report be approved; and,   

 
 (2) That the Executive Director (Legal and Democratic 

Services) in consultation with the Leader of the Council 
be given delegated authority to make revisions to the 
strategy as necessary over its life. 

 
138 Non Attendance by Councillor for 6 Months 

 
The Leader of the Council submitted a report to consider approving that Councillor Terry 
Hurn continue to be a member of the Council if he remains unable to attend any relevant 
meeting of the Council on or before 17th October 2018. 
 
Resolved (1) That Council approved that Councillor Hurn would 

continue to be a member of the Council if, due to 
illness, he is unable to attend any relevant meeting of 
the Council on or before 17th October 2018, with such 
approval to extend until 19th March 2019; and 

 
 (2) That Council review this approval on or before 19th 

March 2019 if Councillor Hurn remains unable to attend 
any relevant meeting of the Council due to illness. 

 
139 Minutes of Cabinet 

 
The Minutes of the meetings of the Cabinet held on 18th July 2018 and 29th August 2018 
were submitted. 
 
The following issues were raised from the Minutes: 
 
Cabinet Meeting, 18th July 2018 - Minute 81 & 82, Lease of Coach House building at 
Rhyddings Park in Oswaldtwistle- Councillor Judith Addison referred to the exclusion of the 
public and that those Councillors not at Cabinet should not be excluded from viewing the 
reports on mod.gov.  
 
Response by Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Resources – Councillor Gareth Molineux reported 
that Councillors should be able to view restricted papers on the committee software system 
once the agenda had been published.  
 
Cabinet Meeting, 29th August 2018 - Minute 110,Leasing of Whiteash Playing Fields & 
Associated Changing Pavilion to Hyndburn Youth FC– Councillor Tony Dobson referred to 
the practicalities of the lease and community groups maintaining the facility along with 
adjoining land next to the sports pitches.  
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and noted. 
 

140 Minutes of Committees 
 
The Minutes of the following meetings were submitted: 

Page 8



 
 
 

 

 
5 

 
COMMITTEE        DATE 
 
Planning Committee       20th June 2018 
 
Communities & Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee 11th July 2018 
 
Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee   12th July 2018 
 
Planning Committee       18th July 2018 
 
Audit Committee        30th July 2018 
 
Planning Committee       15th August 2018 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and noted. 
 

141 Motion(s) submitted on Notice- Manchester Airport Drop off Charge 
 
The following motion was moved by Councillor Noordad Aziz and seconded by Councillor 
Munsif Dad under Council Procedure Rule A9:- 
 
“That this council resolves to write to Manchester Airport to review and consider removing 
the introduction of car park charges to drop off customers. This is impacting on the 
residents of Hyndburn and East Lancashire adversely with many spending the beginning of 
their trips stuck in a queue lasting up to 30 mins just to enter the airport. 
 
“In addition, the council recognises residents’ concerns that the new Airports drop off area 
to avoid the charge is not viable especially for people with young children or when 
passengers have issues walking. In addition, the council also notes given that there is 
currently no direct public transport link from East Lancashire to Manchester Airport due to 
timetabling and capacity issues on the rail network and calls on Manchester Airport to 
support the campaign for a direct rail link from East Lancashire as genuine solution in 
reducing the number of cars by investing in public transport to improve links to Manchester 
Airport.” 
 
After a debate, the motion was put to the vote and declared carried. 
 
Resolved (1) That this Council resolves to write to Manchester 

Airport to review and consider removing the 
introduction of car park charges to drop off customers; 

 
 (2) That this Council recognises residents’ concerns that 

the new Airports drop off area to avoid the charge is not 
viable especially for people with young children or when 
passengers have issues walking; 

 
 (3) That this Council also notes that given there is currently 

no direct public transport link from East Lancashire to 
Manchester Airport due to timetabling and capacity 
issues on the rail network and calls on Manchester 
Airport to support the campaign for a direct rail link 
from East Lancashire as a genuine solution in reducing 
the number of cars by investing in public transport to 
improve links to Manchester Airport.  

Page 9



 
 
 

 

 
6 

 
142 Motion(s) submitted on Notice- Northern Rail Performance Impact on Hyndburn's 

Residents 
 
The following motion was moved by Councillor Noordad Aziz and seconded by Councillor 
Clare Cleary under Council Procedure Rule A9:- 
 
“That this council resolves to write to Department of Transport and Secretary of State for 
Transport to highlight issues that thousands of our residents are facing on a daily basis 
whilst using Northern Rail service. This is impacting on residents of Hyndburn obtaining and 
maintaining roles due to continued poor service. 
 
“The advent of the new timetable has provided both commuters and Northern Rail with 
many unacceptable challenges. On a daily basis, what should be a simple commute to and 
from work has become a battle against the departures board. 
The impact psychologically and physically has become intolerable for our residents who are 
dependent upon rail services. From an economic perspective, this is undeniably impacting 
the North and Lancashire. Residents already fear possible job losses due to the instability 
of the rail service. 
 
“On behalf of the commuters of Hyndburn and East Lancashire, we are asking for an official 
investigation into whether Northern Rail is in breach of its franchise agreement. We also 
ask for reassurance that you are taking every step to ensure Northern Rail improves its 
performance immediately and they are held to account for the poor service they are 
providing. Also, We ask DoT consider giving more power and control be given to Transport 
for North to hold rail franchises to account as well as implement infrastructure projects in 
the North  that can transform the North such as: 

 The re-establishment of the Skipton to Colne Rail Line. 
 The expansion of the M65 to linking into Yorkshire  and to the A1 (M).” 

 
After a debate, the motion was put to the vote and declared carried. 
 
Resolved (1) That this council resolves to write to Department of 

Transport and Secretary of State for Transport to 
highlight issues that thousands of our residents are 
facing on a daily basis whilst using Northern Rail 
services; 

 
 (2) That this Council asks on behalf of Hyndburn 

commuters for an official investigation into whether 
Northern Rail is in breach of its franchise agreement 
and seeks reassurance to ensure Northern Rail 
improves its performance immediately and they are held 
to account for the poor service they are providing; 

 
 (3) That this Council requests that the Department of 

Transport consider giving more power and control to 
Transport for North to hold rail franchises to account as 
well as implement infrastructure projects in the North  
that can transform the North such as: The re-
establishment of the Skipton to Colne Rail Line and the 
expansion of the M65 to linking into Yorkshire  and to 
the A1 (M). 

 
143 Motion(s) submitted on Notice- Medicinal Cannabis for Medical Purposes 

Page 10



 
 
 

 

 
7 

 
The following motion was moved by Councillor Noordad Aziz and seconded by Councillor 
Bernadette Parkinson under Council Procedure Rule A9:- 

“That this council resolves to write to the Department of Health and Home Office in support 
of a Great Harwood resident in relation to requesting a review of the legislation for the use 
of medicinal cannabis for medical purposes especially in cases for terminal cancer patients. 

“The request is based on the experiences of a resident of Great Harwood who was 
diagnosed with terminal brain cancer over six years ago; was given six months to live, 
fortunately the resident is still with us but lives with this prognosis. The residents lives with 
the stark reality that during any of the regular three month check-up it could reveal that the 
cancer is growing, then all the surgery and chemotherapy will begin again.   Going through 
all the treatment when the resident was diagnosed was a horrendous experience, with the 
resident being in constant pain and the tiredness was debilitating. All this would be helped if 
cancer sufferer were allowed legally take medical cannabis oil. This is the reason we ask 
that you look at medical cannabis being legalised and being made available for terminal 
cancer patients like our Great Harwood resident.” 

An amendment was then proposed by Councillor Noordad Aziz and seconded by 
Councillor Bernadette Parkinson as follows:- 
 
That the following sentence be added after the first paragraph:-  
 
“We recognise the recent changes announced, which allows Cannabis-based medicines 
will be available by autumn 2018 according to a plan announced by Home Secretary Sajid 
Javid.” 
 
That the following words be added at the start of the second paragraph “The, request for 
legislation review”:-  
 
That the following words be inserted in the final sentence after legalised “Via legislation”:-  
 
The substantive motion was put to the vote and declared carried. 
 
Resolved  That this council resolves to write to the Department of 

Health and Home Office in support of a Great Harwood 
resident in relation to requesting a review of the 
legislation for the use of medicinal cannabis for medical 
purposes especially in cases for terminal cancer 
patients. 

 
144 Motion(s) submitted on Notice- School Funding Cuts 

 
The following motion was moved by Councillor Loraine Cox and seconded by Councillor 
Gareth Molineux under Council Procedure Rule A9:- 
 
“That this Council notes that as a result of this Conservative Government's change to the 
way schools are funded, Lancashire schools will lose £33.3 million by 2020. This equates to 
£225 per pupil on average.  
 
“Hyndburn Schools have worked hard to achieve excellent levels and this Council believes 
that these government funding cuts are jeopardising our boroughs education standards. We 

Page 11



 
 
 

 

 
8 

are now seeing cash-strapped schools that struggle to give our children a good education, 
with larger classrooms and overworked teachers within Hyndburn.  
 
“Whilst the School's National Funding Formula has benefited some schools, the vast 
majority will be worse off including all Hyndburn school age children.  
 
“Hyndburn Borough Council instructs the Council Leader and Chief Executive to write to the 
Secretary of State for Education, the Rt Hon Damian Hinds MP, and the Chancellor of the 
Exchequer, the Rt Hon Phillip Hammond MP, to call on them to protect Hyndburn school 
children’s education and enhance funding for all Hyndburn schools.” 
 
After a debate, the motion was put to the vote and declared carried. 
 
Resolved (1) That this Council notes that as a result of this 

Conservative Government's change to the way schools 
are funded, Lancashire schools will lose £33.3 million 
by 2020; 

 
 (2) That this Council instructs the Council Leader and Chief 

Executive to write to the Secretary of State for 
Education, the Rt Hon Damian Hinds MP, and the 
Chancellor of the Exchequer, the Rt Hon Phillip 
Hammond MP, to call on them to protect Hyndburn 
school children’s education and enhance funding for all 
Hyndburn schools. 

 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
at which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 12



Page 13

Agenda Item 6.



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



 
1 

 
CABINET 

 

 
Wednesday, 10th October, 2018 

 
Present:  Councillor Miles Parkinson (in the Chair), Councillors Clare Cleary, 

Paul Cox, Munsif Dad, Gareth Molineux and Joyce Plummer 
 

 
160 Apologies for Absence 

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

161 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

162 Minutes of Cabinet 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 29th August 2018 were submitted for 
approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

163 Minutes of Boards, Panels and Working Groups 
 
The Minutes of the Regeneration and Housing Panel held on the 17th July 2018 were 
submitted for noting. 
 
The Deputy Leader of the Conservative Group questioned an item on the town square 
events programme that a fair trade event took place on the Market Pavilion and not in the 
Town Square.  
 
The Portfolio Holder for Housing and Regeneration would contact the Business and 
Marketing Co-Ordinator for the town centre to seek further information. 
 
The Leader of the Conservative Group asked about the CCTV upgrades following a recent 
spate of burglaries in the Warner Street area of Accrington town centre. 
 
The Leader of the Council explained that he had met with the Regeneration and Property 
Manager in relation to additional cameras and the Community Safety Partnership.                                                           
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and noted. 
 

164 Reports of Cabinet Members 
 
Councillor Miles Parkinson reported on the WASPI (Women against state pension 
inequality) campaign and called on Cabinet colleagues to support the cause. A motion 
would be made at the November Council meeting and the Leader of the Conservative 
Group would offer cross party support for the motion. 
 

165 Planning Enforcement Management Plan 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 17

Agenda Item 7.



 
 
 

 

 
 

The Leader of the Council submitted a report explaining that Planning Enforcement was a 
key responsibility of the Planning and Transportation Service and the National Planning 
Policy Framework recommended that local authorities have an enforcement plan in place.   
 
Although the Council currently had a protocol in place it was out of date and did not reflect 
the priorities set out in the National Planning Policy Framework.  The proposed draft policy 
seeked to update the existing protocol so that it reflected current national guidance and the 
National Planning Policy Framework that was issued in July 2018.   
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework, issued in July 2018, recommended that local 
planning authorities publish a local enforcement plan to manage enforcement proactively, in 
a way that was appropriate to the area.   
 
The Management Plan attached to the agenda set out the way in which enforcement  
complaints would be prioritised and managed by the planning service.   
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection   
 
Although an enforcement plan was not mandatory, it was considered best practice to have 
a plan in place.  The presence of an enforcement plan allows members of the public to see 
how their complaint would be managed and it also allows the Local Government 
Ombudsman to understand the approach to enforcement that was being taken by the 
authority should a complaint be made.   
 
The Planning Enforcement Management Plan is largely a reactive plan.  It was intended to 
set out the means by which complaints made to the Council relating to breaches of planning 
control would be investigated and the complainant kept informed.   
 
Planning enforcement is undertaken by one officer within the planning service.  The  
Planning Enforcement Officer works full time responding to complaints alleging breaches of 
planning control, there is not capacity to undertake routine checks of planning permissions 
to ensure that they are developed in accordance with the approved details.    
 
Resolved - That Cabinet support the use of the Planning Enforcement  

Management Plan when investigating alleged breaches of 
planning control.   

 
166 The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 

2018 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Housing and Regeneration submitted a report to brief Cabinet 
Members of the forthcoming changes to the way in which animal boarding  
establishments, dog breeding establishments, pet shops and riding establishments  
are to be licensed by the Council and the commencement of responsibility for the  
licensing of the keeping of animals for exhibition. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 

  
The Council is at present responsible for the regulation of a variety of animal-related 

Page 18



 
 
 

 

 
 

businesses, as well as the keeping of specified dangerous animals by individuals. The 
licence types currently issued by the Council are: 
 
Animal boarding establishment licences (e.g. kennels, catteries, home boarders, pet day 
care); Dog breeding establishment licences (premises used for, or in connection with, the 
commercial breeding of dogs); Pet shop licences (any business keeping animals with a 
view to selling them as pets); Riding establishment licences (premises keeping horses and 
ponies for hire for riding, or for riding tuition – excluding livery stables). 

 
The first significant change is that all four existing types of licence, together with the 
additional activity of keeping and training animals for exhibition, (which is to brought over 
from Lancashire County Council), will be encompassed by one new ‘Animal Activity 
licence’. If an applicant is running more than one licensable animal related activity, each 
activity will be assessed separately and set out in one licence. The length of licence 
(previously one year in most cases) may be anything between one and three years 
dependent on the outcome of their inspection and the type of licence. 
 
Under the new arrangements, the inspection process will be much more comprehensive 
and built around providing the premises with a ‘risk rating’. This process will establish 
whether the business is ‘low risk’ or ‘higher risk’ based on the level to which it meets the 
standards set out in regulations and guidance. The business is then awarded between one 
and five stars, thus determining the length of the licence which can be between 1 and 3 
years. The exception is ‘Keeping and Training Animals for Exhibition’ for which all licences 
will be issued for 3 years as default. The star rating will be displayed on the licence and 
included in the Council’s public register. 
 
The proposed fees are therefore split into two parts – the application fee, payable at the 
time of submission to cover the Council’s costs in considering and determining the 
application, and the licence fee payable on granting the licence, which covers ongoing 
enforcement and compliance requirements. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection   
 
The Council had no alternative but to comply with the Regulations and to implement the 
new licensing regime from 1 October 2018. 
 
Resolved (1) That Cabinet noted the changes to the way in which  

animal-related activities are to be licensed; and 
 

  (2) That Cabinet agreed to the proposed fee structure set out  
in paragraph 3.22 of the report attached to the agenda; and 

 
(3)  That Cabinet delegated decisions to the Head of Regeneration and 
Housing Services in relation to:- 

  (a) Risk rating appeals; and 
  (b) The suspension or variation of licences; and 

(c) Reviewing the fee levels annually and adjusting the fees as 
required. 

 
167 Council Tax and National Non Domestic Rates Collection and Recovery Policies 

 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report to seek Cabinet approval for the 
adoption of an updated Council Tax and National Non Domestic Rates Collection  
and Recovery Policy, replacing a previous version from 2015. 
 

Page 19



 
 
 

 

 
 

Also included was permission to seek approval for the adoption of an updated Enforcement 
Agent Code of Conduct, replacing a previous version from 2015. Along with seeking 
approval for a Vulnerability Policy, a new policy expanding on provisions previously 
included within the 2015 Collection and Recovery Policy. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The Council Tax and National Non Domestic Rates (business rates) Collection and  
Recovery Policy provides a foundation for our operations as it outlines the service that 
taxpayers can expect to receive as well as a transparent structure for the collection and 
recovery of tax due to the Council; a function which is essential to the funding of public 
services.   
 
Reduced Government funding places greater emphasis each year on the importance of 
collecting and recovering Council Tax and Business Rates and as further pilots for the local 
retention of Business Rates continue to refine the Government’s intentions for Business 
Rate retention schemes, it is required that our policies reflect our practices and essential 
that all polices provide for a robust but fair collection and recovery process. 
 
The Council Tax and National Non Domestic Rates Collection and Recovery Policy remains 
broadly the same as the 2015 policy with some alterations to bring the policy in to line with 
incremental changes made to day to day practices since 2015.  The updated policy aims to 
support our administrative practices, streamline our operation and provide for the efficient 
and effective collection of local taxes. 
 
Vulnerability criteria has been removed from the previous policy and extended in a separate 
Vulnerability Policy.   
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection   
 
Collection and Recovery of Council Tax and business rates works within legislative  
frameworks and the Council adopted its current policy in 2015.  Remaining with this  
policy does not affect the Council’s ability to collect and recover local taxes however  
the incremental changes made since 2015 means that regular update and review  
provides a more accurate reflection of everyday practices. 
 
The Enforcement Agent Code of Conduct remains largely unchanged however  
obligations towards data privacy and updates to every practices requires that this is  
up to date and an accurate reflection of the Council’s current instructions for Agents  
operating on behalf of the Council. 
 
Vulnerability was given due regard within the 2015 Collection and Recovery Policy  
and could remain within this main guidance, however it is considered more  
reflective of today’s emphasis on the treatment of vulnerable groups and individuals  
to underline our commitments and obligations to our vulnerable residents.  
 
 
 
Resolved  (1) That Cabinet approved and adopted the Council Tax  

and National Non Domestic Rates Collection and Recovery 
Policy attached as Appendix 1 to the agenda; and 
 

Page 20



 
 
 

 

 
 

(2) That Cabinet approved and adopted the Enforcement Agent 
Code of Conduct attached as Appendix 2 to the agenda; and 

 
(3)  That Cabinet approved and adopted the Vulnerability Policy 
attached as Appendix 3 to the agenda. 

 
168 National Non Domestic Rates Mandatory, Discretionary and Hardship Relief Scheme 

 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report to seek Cabinet approval for the 
adoption of the National Non Domestic Rates Mandatory, Discretionary and  
Hardship Relief Scheme. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The administration of Mandatory, Discretionary and Hardship Relief for business  
rates forms part of the Council’s mandate for the billing, collection and recovery of  
National Non Domestic Rates.  While the legislative framework for this remains  
largely unchanged, the policies used by officers in the administration of reliefs is  
reviewed, amended and updated regularly to ensure that our policies are relevant  
and reflect current practices. 
 
As the Government is moving further towards higher levels of local business rate  
retention, it is essential that our policies and practices are reviewed regularly and  
updated as required in order to remain relevant, accurate and legal. 
 
There have been no legislative changes affecting this policy and administration of  
the various reliefs available within business rates remains within the relevant  
legislative framework and guidance. 
 
While the discretionary relief provisions in this policy have not changed, the policy  
does now include provisions announced by the Government in 2017 and has  
consolidated guidance for officers and taxpayers that was previously contained in a  
number of separate documents. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection   
 
The administration of business rates reliefs works within legislative frameworks and  
not adopting this policy does not affect the Council’s ability to administer, collect and  
recover business rates however regular review can ensure that our policies and  
practices are transparent and robust. 
 
Resolved - That Cabinet approved and adopted the National Non  

Domestic Rates Mandatory, Discretionary and Hardship Relief 
Scheme attached as Appendix 1 to the agenda. 

 
169 Adoption of the Institute of Licensing Guidance - Determining the suitability of 

applicants and licensees in the hackney carriage and private hire trade 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report to seek Cabinet approval for the 
adoption of the Institute of Licensing Guidance – “Determining the suitability of applicants 
and licensees in the hackney carriage and private hire trades” in place of the current 
conviction policy. 
 

Page 21



 
 
 

 

 
 

Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The overriding aim of any Licensing Authority when carrying out its functions in relation to 
the licensing of hackney carriage and private hire drivers, vehicles and private hire 
operators must be the protection of the public. 
 
The relevant legislation provides that any person must satisfy the Council that they  
are a ‘fit and proper person’ before any licence can be granted and further they  
must remain ‘fit and proper’ throughout the period of their licence. To assist the  
Council in determining whether an individual is a ‘fit and proper’ person to hold a  
licence, and for reasons of transparency, so that applicants can be aware of what  
our requirements are, the Council has had a Convictions Policy for several years. A  
copy of the Council’s current convictions policy was attached at Appendix 2. This  
policy is based upon the current AGMA model.   
 
The new Institute of Licensing document was intended to provide guidance on determining 
suitability, taking into account the character of the applicant or licensee. In particular it 
considered how regard should be had to the antecedent history of the applicant or licence 
holder and its relevance to their ‘fitness and propriety.’  As with any guidance it provided a 
starting point from which decisions can be made taking into account the particular merits of 
each case. 
 
The LGA and IoL hope that the new guidance will be adopted by as many local authorities 
as possible to provide a greater level of consistency and fairness in decision making across 
the country and it is understood that around 12 local authorities have already adopted the 
guidance since its publication in April 2018. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection   
 
The Council could take no action and continue with the current Conviction Policy. However 
this new guidance is the result of an extensive piece of work carried out by highly respected 
and knowledgeable practitioners and lawyers in the field of licensing and as such is a far 
more comprehensive guidance than our current policy. 
 
Resolved  - That Cabinet approved the adoption of the guidance  

attached at Appendix 1 that has been published by the Institute 
of Licensing in conjunction with the Local Government 
Association (LGA), Lawyers in Local Government (LLIG) and the 
National Association of Licensing Enforcement Officers 
(NALEO) to assist Councils when determining the suitability of 
applicants and licensees in the hackney carriage and private 
hire trades to replace the current convictions policy with 
immediate effect. 

 
170 Lease of Higham Playing Fields to Accrington Stanley Football in the Community 

Trust Limited 
 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure the latest legal information was included in the report. 
 
The Leader of the Council submitted a report to seek approval from Cabinet to grant a 
lease of Higham Playing Fields in Accrington and associated changing pavilion  

Page 22



 
 
 

 

 
 

(shown edged red on the plan attached to the agenda report) to Accrington Stanley  
Football in the Community Trust Limited (ASCT) to develop the site into a  
Community Sports Hub. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The site consists of an old changing pavilion (constructed in 1972 which is in poor condition 
and needs investment to bring it up to modern day standards), a grass playing field (on two 
levels) which was levelled and drained in 2012 with on street parking only.     
 
Currently the site is used informally and for community sports (football, rugby league and 
cricket) primarily at weekends and evenings during the week. The frequency of use varies 
depending on the time of year and whether any sporting fixtures are being played. The 
pavilion is only open when sporting fixtures are scheduled.   
 
At Cabinet in February 2017 it was agreed that the Council would explore the opportunity to 
work with ASCT to provide a community sports hub. ASCT wanted to lease an area of land 
from the Council and develop it into a community sports hub. 
 
Cabinet was prepared to support the ASCT proposal in principal because ASCT was  
prepared to invest £2 million to develop a community sports hub, facilitate community  
activities, which will include a training programme, is a ‘not for profit’ organisation and  
registered charity which has expertise in coaching, training & promoting health through 
sports and the charitable objects of ASCT (set out in paragraph 3.7 of this report) reflect 
how the Council would like to see the site used and developed. 
  
ASCT has received in principle funding for the proposal from the Football Foundation, 
secured grant funding from a number of other funding bodies and have access to funding of 
their own, which add up to £2 million.  
 
It is proposed that this funding package will provide a community sports hub which will 
consist of a number of outdoor sports grass pitches, an all-weather sports pitch,  a 
community building which contains offices, a café/refreshment area, changing and welfare 
facilities and coach education rooms, plus off street parking. 
 
Providing a range of community services and opportunities can also support the financial 
sustainability of the site, providing income both on an educational and sporting front. It will 
allow people from every background to access the sporting facilities, helping to improve 
attitudes to activity as well as providing a facility for football development.  
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection   
 
Cabinet could decide not to proceed with the proposed lease of Higham Playing Fields to 
ASCT. Whilst this is an option, the recommendations in the report acknowledge that the 
external investment (£2 million) in facilities at Higham Playing Field and the proposed 
community activities to be organised by ASCT, are of tangible benefit to the residents of 
Hyndburn. 
 
Resolved (1) That Cabinet considered the objections to the proposed  

lease received by the Council in response to the statutory notice 
given under section 123 Local Government Act 1972,  copies of 
which had been supplied to each member of Cabinet along with 
the report and were summarised in Appendix 1; and 

Page 23



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
  (2) That Cabinet agreed to lease Higham Playing Fields and  

associated changing pavilion (as shown edged red on the 
attached plan of the agenda) to ASCT for the purpose of 
developing the site as a community sports hub on the terms set 
out in paragraph 3.14 of the report; and 

 
   (3)   That Cabinet delegated authority to the Deputy Head of  

Environmental Services, following consultation with the 
Executive Director (Legal & Democratic Services) and Head of 
Housing & Regeneration to agree the detailed terms of the lease 
and thereafter instruct Legal Services to complete the lease to 
ASCT; and 

 
   (4)   That Cabinet delegated authority to the Deputy Head of  

Environmental Services, following consultation with the Leader 
of the Council and the Executive Director (Legal & Democratic 
Services) to agree the detailed terms of any novation or other 
agreements required by Fields in Trust, Sport England and the 
Football Foundation in connection with the proposed lease and 
thereafter to instruct Legal Services to complete any novation or 
other agreements with Sport England, Fields in Trust and the 
Football Foundation. 

 
171 Financial Position August 2018- Report for the Year Ending 31st March 2019 

 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure the latest up to date financial information was included in the report. 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report to inform Cabinet on the financial 
spending of the Council up to the end of August 2018 and the financial forecast outturn 
position for the Accounting Year 2018/19. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The financial details of the report was shown as a table at the end of the report. 
 
The spend for the first five months of the financial year to the end of August 2018 was 
£4,307,277 compared to a Budget of £4,330,262 giving a small positive variance of £23,000 
over the first five months of the year. 
 
The current forecast spend to the end of the financial year in March 2019 is £11,143,000 
compared to a Budget of £11,174,000.  This forecast produces a positive variance of 
£31,000.  The main areas of financial pressure are Planning & Transportation and 
Regeneration & Property Services. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection   
 
Not applicable.   
 
Resolved - That Cabinet noted the report and asked that the  

Page 24



 
 
 

 

 
 

Corporate Management Team look to reduce costs and increase 
income over the remainder of the year to help improve the 
overall financial position of the Council.  

 
172 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019/20 To 2021/22 

 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure the latest up to date financial information was included in the report. 
 
The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report to inform Cabinet of the 3 
year projections of income and spending for the Council ahead of formulating its savings 
plan for the 2019/20 Revenue Budget and determining the size of its Capital Budget. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
To inform Cabinet about updates on its medium term financial outlook ahead of starting to 
work on producing its saving for the Budget for 2019/20 and determining the level of 
Council Tax.  This report also ensures those decisions are taken with a view to the overall 
position of the Council going forward and are not limited to a narrow one year perspective. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons for rejection. 
 
Resolved - That Cabinet approved the report and the accompanying  

Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). 
 

173 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved - That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local  

Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting 
during the following item, when it was likely, in view of the 
nature of the proceedings that there would otherwise be 
disclosure of exempt information within the Paragraph at 
Schedule 12A of the Act specified at the item. 

 
174 Report of Urgent Cabinet Decision- Business Rate 75% Retention Lancashire Pilot 

Bid 
 
Exempt Information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 3 – 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information) 
 
The Leader of the Council submitted a copy of an exempt signed Urgent Cabinet Decision 
form and accompanying exempt report relating to the use of the Urgent Cabinet Decision 
Procedure in respect of the financial opportunities and financial risks from partaking in a 
Pilot Bid to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) for 75% 
Business Rate Retention. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 

Page 25



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
The reasons for the decision were set out in the exempt decision form and accompanying 
exempt report. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The alternative options considered and reasons for rejection were set out in the exempt 
report. 
 
Resolved - That the use of the Urgent Cabinet Decision Procedure be  

noted. 
 

175 Report of Urgent Cabinet Decision- Waive contract  procedure rules for procurement 
of new Christmas Lighting to Accrington Town Centre 
 
Exempt Information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 3 – 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information) 
 
The Leader of the Council submitted a copy of an exempt signed Urgent Cabinet Decision 
form and accompanying exempt report relating to the use of the Urgent Cabinet Decision 
Procedure in respect of permission to waive the Council’s contract procedure rules and to 
seek permission to award the contract to supply and fix new Christmas lights to   Accrington 
Town Centre. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The reasons for the decision were set out in the exempt decision form and accompanying 
exempt report. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The alternative options considered and reasons for rejection were set out in the exempt 
report. 
 
Resolved - That the use of the Urgent Cabinet Decision Procedure be  

noted. 
 

176 Sale of Former Council Offices, 20 Cannon Street, Accrington 
 
Exempt Information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 3 – 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information) 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report to seek Cabinet instructions for the 
sale of former Council Offices, 20 Cannon Street, Accrington which was shown edged in 
red on the report attached to the agenda. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision  
 
The reasons for the decision were set out in the exempt report. 

Page 26



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The alternative options considered and reasons for rejection were set out in the exempt 
report. 
 
Resolved  - That Cabinet considered the report and the bids received  

and Delegated authority be granted to the Head of Regeneration 
and Housing to accept the preferred offer which was option 1 of 
the exempt report and proceed with the sale of the property. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



 
1 

 
JUDICIAL COMMITTEE (PRIVATE HIRE AND HACKNEY 

CARRIAGE LICENSING) 
 

 
Wednesday, 5th September, 2018 

 
Present:  Councillor Melissa Fisher (in the Chair), Councillors Joyce Plummer (Vice 

Chair), Stewart Eaves, Eamonn Higgins and Lisa Allen 
 

Apologies Terry Hurn 

  

 
113 Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillor Terry Hurn. 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

114 Minutes of Last Meeting Held on 23rd July 2018 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Judicial Committee (Private Hire and Hackney Carriage 
Licensing) held on 23rd July 2018 were submitted for approval as correct record.   
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record.  
 
 

115 Licensing Procedure for Meetings of the Committee 
 
The General Licensing Procedure and the Complaints Licensing Procedure to be followed 
at the meeting in relation to hackney carriage and private hire driver licences were 
submitted.  Copies of the procedures had been sent to the licensed drivers and the 
complainant.   
 
Resolved - That the Procedures be noted. 
 

116 Licensing Guidelines 
 
The Hyndburn Borough Council Licensing Policy Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 2017 
(Guidance on the Relevance of Convictions) was submitted.  A copy of the Guidance had 
been sent to the drivers and complainant. 
 
Resolved - That the Guidelines be noted. 
 

117 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved - That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local 

Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting during the following items, when it was likely, 
in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, or 
the nature of the proceedings, that there would 
otherwise be disclosure of exempt information within 

Public Document Pack

Page 29

Agenda Item 8.



 
 
 

 

 
 

the Paragraphs at Schedule 12A of the Act specified at 
the items. 

 
118 Consideration of an Existing Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Joint Driver's 

Licence (MA) 
 
(Exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 1 – 
Information relating to any individual) 
 
The Licensing Manager, on behalf of the Executive Director (Legal and Democratic 
Services), submitted a report informing the Committee of relevant issues relating to a 
licensed private hire driver (MA).  A number of  issues and complaints had been lodged 
against the driver and these were set out in the report.  The following document was 
appended to the report:- 
 
Appendix 1 – photographic evidence of the driver working without displaying the company 
door signs. 
 
In accordance with licensing procedure, the driver (MA) and a representative had been 
invited to attend the meeting and both were present. 
 
Attention was drawn to the Hyndburn Borough Council Licensing Policy Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire 2017 guidelines on the Relevance of Convictions.  Legal advice on the 
relevance of the incident set out in the report and the driver’s history of complaints/issues 
was sought by and provided to the Committee at the meeting. 
 
The Committee was requested to: 
 
(a) Determined whether the facts referred to in the complaint were substantially true; 
 
(b)  Having made a finding of the facts, decide whether those facts revealed if the driver 
had acted in any way which would bring into doubt his suitability to hold a driver’s licence 
with the Authority; and 
 
(c)  Determine what action, if any, should be taken against the driver. 
 
Resolved - That, having taken into consideration the driver’s past 

history of complaints/issues and the fact that the driver 
(MA) had continuously breached conditions attached to 
his licence and demonstrated a poor attitude to the 
licensing regime, the Committee considered the driver 
not to be a fit and proper person to hold a licence and 
that the private hire licence be revoked pursuant to 
Section 61(1)(b) of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, subject to the 
driver’s right of appeal.  

 
119 Consideration of an Existing Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver's Licence (AK) 

 
(Exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 1 – 
Information relating to any individual) 
 
The Licensing Manager, on behalf of the Executive Director (Legal and Democratic 
Services), submitted a report informing the Committee of relevant issues relating to a 
licensed hackney carriage and private hire joint driver (AK).  A number of issues and 

Page 30



 
 
 

 

 
 

complaints had been lodged against the driver and these were set out in the report.  The 
following documents were appended to the report:- 
 
Appendix 1 – Statements of PC L Jack and Officer A. Goulden 
 
Appendix 2 – Complaint – 01/05/2015 
 
Appendix 3 – Complaint – 08/07/2015 
 
Appendix 4 – Complaint – 29/06/2018 
 
In accordance with licensing procedure, the driver (AK) and a representative had been 
invited to attend the meeting.  The driver was in attendance alone. 
 
Attention was drawn to the Hyndburn Borough Council Licensing Policy Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire 2017 guidelines on the Relevance of Convictions.  Legal advice on the 
relevance of the incident set out in the report and the driver’s history of complaints/issues 
was sought by and provided to the Committee at the meeting. 
 
The Committee was requested to: 
 
(a) Determined whether the facts referred to in the complaint were substantially true; 
 
(b)  Having made a finding of the facts, decide whether those facts revealed if the driver 
had acted in any way which would bring into doubt his suitability to hold a driver’s licence 
with the Authority; and 
 
(c)  Determine what action, if any, should be taken against the driver. 
 
Resolved - That, having taken into consideration the driver’s past 

history of complaints/issues, the continuous breach of 
licensing conditions and the driver’s attitude and 
behaviour demonstrated throughout the hearing, the 
Committee considered the driver not to be a fit and 
proper person to hold a licence and that the private hire 
licence be revoked pursuant to Section 61(1)(b) of the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, 
and the interests of public safety the revocation should 
have immediate effect pursuant to Section 61 (2B) of the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.  

 
 

 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



 
 

 
RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 
Tuesday, 11th September, 2018 

 
Present:  Councillor Noordad Aziz (in the Chair),  

Councillors Stephen Button, Stewart Eaves, Marlene Haworth, 
Tim O'Kane, Bernadette Parkinson and Kath Pratt 
Co-optees: Bernard Dawson 

  

Apologies: Councillors Lisa Allen, Jean Battle, Terry Hurn, Jenny Molineux, 
Paddy Short 
Co-optees: Paul Barton and Ian Ormerod 
 

 
120 Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Lisa Allen, Jean Battle, Terry Hurn, 
Jenny Molineux and Paddy Short. 
 
Councillors Stuart Eaves, Marlene Haworth, Bernadette Parkinson and Kath Pratt attended 
the meeting as substitute representatives for Councillors Battle, Allen, Jenny Molineux and 
Hurn respectively. 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

121 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on the 12th July 2018 
were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

122 People Strategy Update 
 
The Head of HR, Kirsten Burnett informed the Committee of progress made against actions 
in the People Strategy and general updates connected to the HR service. 
 
The committee were provided with details on learning and development and budget 
reductions of 11.3% for training in the next year. 
 
Information was provided on: Employee relations, the employee survey, public sector 
apprenticeship target and policy reviews 
 
Attached to the agenda in appendix 1 was the people strategy containing a number of 
actions and targets along with the workforce report as of the 31st March and gender pay 
gap statement. 
 
No advance questions had been submitted and a number of Councillors clarified 
information contained in the reports. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 33



 
 
 

 

 
 

The Chair thanked the Head of HR for the additional information on sickness absence 
which was circulated as a separate report at the meeting as the information was requested 
and received after the briefing meeting last week. 
 
Resolved - (1) That progress and proposed actions were noted and  

any suggestions for additional actions would be given to the 
Head of HR; and 

 
- (2) That the What Team look at the feasibility of providing free 

flu vaccinations for all HBC staff who may not qualify for one via 
the NHS vaccination programme.   

 
123 Apprenticeship and Employment Event 

 
The Portfolio Holder for Education, Leisure and Arts submitted a report for the Committee to 
consider the outcomes from the 2018 Apprenticeship and Employment Even and consider 
the future delivery of the event to maximise success. 
 
Councillor Haworth asked for clarification on the number of apprenticeships that were 
available and the Overview and Scrutiny Officer would investigate this figure. 
 
Councillor Button commented on the event and reported that the turnout was much busier 
than others he had attended in the region.  
 
No advanced questions had been submitted for this agenda item.  
 
Resolved - (1) That the Committee thanked those involved at  

Accrington and Rossendale College for their lead role in this 
year’s event, and welcomes the partnership established with the 
Council to deliver a future event; and 

 
- (2) That the Committee asks Cabinet to continue with the event 

via the college and make a budget available; and 
 

- (3) That information was provided on the number of 
apprenticeships taken up as a result of the event; and 

 
- (4) That an appropriate time for the event to be held during the 

course of year was researched and the event was extended to 
include graduate opportunities as well.  

 
124 Hyndburn Green Review 

 
A report was submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny Resources Committee to establish a 
Task and Finish Scrutiny Panel to complete a review of the green agenda in Hyndburn. 
 
A green review was added onto the scrutiny work programme for this year to cover green 
activities associated with the Council and also those from the wider borough in general.  
 
Resolved - (1) That the Committee establishes a panel of  

between 4-5 members to conduct the review, these included: 
Councillors Jenny Molineux, Stephen Button, Tim O’Kane, 
Noordad Aziz and Marlene Haworth would confirm at a later 
date; and  

 

Page 34



 
 
 

 

 
 

  - (2) That the panel be responsible for appointing its  
own Chair, setting its own terms of reference and review plan; 
and 

 
- (3) That the Panel reports back to the Committee upon 

competition of the review.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



 

 
1 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
Wednesday, 12th September, 2018 

 
Present:  Councillor Eamonn Higgins (in the Chair), Councillors Loraine Cox (Vice 

Chair), Clare Cleary, Paul Cox, Stewart Eaves, Melissa Fisher, 
June Harrison, Marlene Haworth, Abdul Khan, Michael Miller, 
Dave Parkins, Kath Pratt and Paddy Short 
 

Apologies: Councillors Judith Addison, Jean Battle and Stephen Button 

  

 
125 Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Judith Addison, Jean Battle and 
Stephen Button.  
 
Councillors Michael Miller, Clare Cleary and Paul Cox acted as substitute representatives 
for Councillors Addison, Battle and Button. 
 
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations.  
 

126 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The minutes of the last Planning Committee held on the 15th August 2018, were submitted 
for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

127 Town and Country Planning Act 1990- Planning Applications for Determination 
 
The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer submitted a report setting out recommended 
action on the following planning applications. 
 
Resolved   - (1) That the following planning application be refused  

contrary to Officer recommendation as per the report and that 
delegated authority be granted to the Chief Planning & 
Transportation Officer to draft reasons for refusal on the 
grounds of visual impact and noise issues:- 

 
11/18/0244 Proposed storage and service yard for portable accommodation and plant 

Land to rear of Kirkham’s Garage, West End, Oswaldtwistle 
 
N.B. 1. The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer drew the Committee’s attention to 
the extra information and proposed conditions contained within the update report which was 
released before the meeting and related to the above planning application. 
 
2. Mr Brian Adams spoke at the Committee in objection of the above planning application 
and against the Officer’s recommendation to approve planning permission. 
 

Page 37



 
 
 

 

 
2 

3. Mr Paul Kynaston spoke at the Committee in support of the above planning application 
and in favour of the Officer’s recommendation to approve planning permission. 
 
4. Councillor Tony Dobson read a statement on behalf of ward Councillor Sara Britcliffe in 
objection of the above planning application and against the Officer’s recommendation to 
approve planning permission. 
 
Resolved   - (2) That the following planning application be approved  

subject to the conditions as per the report:- 
 
11/18/0225 Full: Erection of agricultural building 

Land at Rhoden Duckworth Hill Lane, Oswaldtwistle 
 
1. Ms Clare Ainsworth spoke at the Committee in objection of the above planning 
application and against the Officer’s recommendation to approve planning permission. 
 
Resolved   - (3) That the following planning application be approved  

subject to the conditions as per the report:- 
 
11/18/0294 Change of use of agricultural building to 1 No dwelling (C3) including  

curtilage and parking 
Land off Sandy Lane, Accrington 

 
Resolved   - (4) That the following planning application be approved  

subject to the conditions as per the report and update sheet 
along with the signing of a Section106 agreement as set out in 
the report:- 

 
11/18/0156 Erection of 69no dwellings (including 20% affordable) with open  

space, infrastructure and associated works 
Land East of Thwaites Road, Oswaldtwistle 

 
N.B. 1. The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer drew the Committee’s attention to 
the extra information and proposed conditions contained within the update report which was 
released before the meeting and related to the above planning application. 
 
2. Mr Kevin Farrington spoke at the Committee in support of the above planning application 
and in favour of the Officer’s recommendation to approve planning permission. 
 

 
Signed:…………………………………………… 

 
Date: …………….………………………………………… 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 
 

 

Page 38



 

 
1 

 
JUDICIAL COMMITTEE (PRIVATE HIRE AND HACKNEY 

CARRIAGE LICENSING) 
 

 
Monday, 1st October, 2018 

 
Present:  Councillor Melissa Fisher (in the Chair), Councillors Joyce Plummer (Vice 

Chair), Stewart Eaves, Lisa Allen, Judith Addison and Dave Parkins 
 

Apologies Eamonn Higgins and Terry Hurn 

  

 
145 Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Higgins and Hurn.  
Councillor Parkins acted as substitute representative for Councillor Higgins and Councillor 
Addison acted as substitute representative for Councillor Hurn. 
 

146 Minutes of Last Meeting Held on 5th September 2018 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Judicial Committee (Private Hire and Hackney Carriage 
Licensing) held on 5th September 2018 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 
 

147 Licensing Procedure for Meetings of the Committee 
 
The General Licensing Procedure to be followed at the meeting in relation to Hackney 
Carriage/Private Hire Licences was submitted.  A copy of the procedure had been sent to 
the licensed Operator. 
 
Resolved - That the Guidelines be noted. 
 

148 Licensing Guidelines 
 
The Hyndburn Borough Council Licensing Policy Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 2017 
(Guidance on the Relevance of Convictions) was submitted.  A copy of the Guidance had 
been sent to those attending the meeting. 
 
Resolved - That the Guidelines be noted. 
 

149 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved - That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local 

Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting during the following item, when it was likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be transacted, or 
the nature of the proceedings, that there would 
otherwise be disclosure of exempt information within 
the Paragraphs at Schedule 12A of the Act specified at 
the items. 

Public Document Pack

Page 39



 
 
 

 

 
2 

 
150 Consideration of an Existing Private Hire Operators Licence 

 
(Exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 1 – 
Information relating to any individual) 
 
The Licensing Manager, on behalf of the Executive Director (Legal and Democratic 
Services), submitted a report to enable Members to consider what action to take, if any, in 
respect of an Operator’s licence.  A number of issues and complaints had been lodged 
against the Operator and these were set out in the report.  The following documents were 
appended to the report:- 
 
Appendix 1 –  Statements of Complainants July 2018 complaint 
 
Appendix 2 –  Booking Records  
 
Appendix 3 –  Email to Operator’s Solicitor relating to complaint of Witnesses 1 & 2 
 
Appendix 4 – Further Emails between the Council and the Operator’s Solicitor 
 
Appendix 5 -  Report to Committee 2010 
 
Appendix 6 -  Email to Operator’s Solicitor 11th July 2018 
 
Appendix 7 -   Letter from Operator dated 12th July 2018 
 
Appendix 8 -   Letter of complaint from Witness 3 
 
Appendix 9 -  Complaint 17th October 2017 
 
Appendix 10 -  MOT Failure Certificate 26th January 2018 
 
Appendix 11 -  Complaint of Witness 3 (January 31st 2018 
 
Appendix 12 – Complaint of Witness 4 (February 20th 2018) 
 
Appendix 13 -  Complaint 22nd February 2018 
 
Appendix 14 - Complaint 9th March 2018 
 
Appendix 15 - Complaint 30th April 2018 
 
Appendix 16 - Email exchange between the Operator and Licensing Officer after incident 

30th April 2018 
 
Appendix 17 - Two complaints submitted 21st August 2018 
 
Appendix 18 -  Email confirming bookings 
 
Appendix 19 -  Complaint and associated emails 10th September 2018 
 
In accordance with the Licensing Procedure, the Operator and representation had been 
invited to attend the meeting.  Representatives of the Operator and their legal 
representation were present at the meeting.  
 

Page 40



 
 
 

 

 
3 

Attention was drawn to the Hyndburn Borough Council Licensing Policy Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire 2017 guidelines on the Relevance of Convictions.  Legal advice on the 
relevance of the incidents set out in the report and the Operator’s history of 
complaints/issues was sought by and provided to the Committee at the meeting. 
 
The legal representatives of the Operator made further submissions of evidence prior to the 
meeting (an evidence bundle) and circulated two further pieces of evidence at the meeting, 
referenced AP7 and AP16, which had been omitted from the evidence bundle. 
 
Council representatives submitted further evidence at the meeting in the form of copies of 
the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire licensing booklet and a document showing that the 
Operator had received it.   
 
On completion of all evidence and information being submitted before the Committee the 
meeting was adjourned.   
 
The meeting reconvened on Thursday 4th October 2018 at 1.30 p.m.  The Committee was 
requested to: 
 
(a) Determine whether the facts referred to in the submitted evidence were substantially 
true; 
 
(b)  Having made a finding of the facts, decide whether those facts revealed if the Operator 
had acted in any way which would bring into doubt their suitability to hold an Operator’s 
licence with the Authority; and 
 
(c) Determine what action, if any, should be taken against the Operator. 
 
Resolved (1) That, having taken into consideration the matters 

contained within the report and any representations 
made, the Committee determined that rather than 
suspend or revoke the Operator’s licence it would be 
more appropriate a final warning letter was issued 
requiring the Operator to agree an action plan within 21 
days with the Council’s Licensing Manager which would 
remedy the failures that had been identified; and 

  (2) That the implementation of the action plan be monitored 
by the Council’s Licensing Manager for the next four 
months. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



 
 

 
COMMUNITIES AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 
 

 
Friday, 5th October, 2018 

 
Present:  Councillor Glen Harrison (in the Chair),  

Councillors Bernadette Parkinson (Vice Chair), Lisa Allen, Judith Addison, 
Loraine Cox and Stewart Eaves 
Cooptees Bernard Dawson 
 

  

Apologies: June Harrison 
 

 
151 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor June Harrison.   
Councillor Stewart Eaves acted as a substitute representative 
 

152 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
 
Councillor Judith Addison declared an interest that she had been a Trustee Member of 
Citizens Advice for 9 years. 
 
No other declarations of interest or dispensations were declared at the meeting 
 

153 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 
Wednesday, 11th July 2018 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and noted. 
 

154 Homelessness in Hyndburn 
 
The Chair reported that the item ‘Homelessness in Hyndburn’ would be deferred to a future 
meeting. 
 

155 Citizens Advice - Issues facing Residents of Hyndburn 
 
The Committee received a presentation from Citizens Advice Rossendale and Hyndburn. 
 
Chief Officer, Rachel Whippy and Chair of the Trustee Board, Nick Pilling provided details 
of how the organisation makes a difference to the people of Hyndburn. They also thanked 
the Council for the grant provided to help fund the service. 
 
Information in the presentation included: How people access services, examples of people 
that have been helped, positive impacts & the difference made, universal credit and 
outcomes achieved.  
 
A number of questions were asked by Councillors present at the meeting: 

Public Document Pack

Page 43



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 Has the workload increased with universal credit 

 Are late opening times available 

 What are the options for those who may not have a smartphone or access to a 
library 

 Which organisations does Citizens Advice work with in relation to homelessness 

 Does the organisation contact landlords direct to help resolve issues 

 Changes to the disability living allowance 

 Has the merger with Rossendale helped  
 
The Chair reported that the next meeting would be on the 31st September and a number of 
questions raised at the meeting could be put to the DWP who would be in attendance.  
 
Resolved - That the presentation and update be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Signed:…………………………………………… 

 
Date: …………….………………………………………… 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 
 

 

Page 44



 
 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
Wednesday, 10th October, 2018 

 
Present:  Councillor Eamonn Higgins (in the Chair), Councillors Loraine Cox (Vice 

Chair), Judith Addison, Jean Battle, Stephen Button, Stewart Eaves, 
Melissa Fisher, Marlene Haworth, Abdul Khan, Dave Parkins, Kath Pratt, 
Paddy Short and Paul Cox 
 

Apologies: Councillor June Harrison 

  

 
156 Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillor June Harrison.  
 
Councillor Paul Cox acted as substitute representatives for Councillor Harrison. 
  
Councillor Judith Addison declared an interest in relation to the planning application 
11/18/0238 Devine Fisheries, as she was a member of the Ramblers Association. 
 
There were no reported dispensations.  
 

157 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The minutes of the last Planning Committee held on the 12th September 2018, were 
submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

158 Town and Country Planning Act 1990- Planning Applications for Determination 
 
The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer submitted a report setting out recommended 
action on the following planning applications. 
 
Resolved   - (1) (a) That the following planning application be  

approved contrary to Officer recommendation as per the report 
and the update sheet circulated before the committee on the 
grounds that the committee came to the conclusion that for 
reasons that the benefit of the development outweigh the 
concerns about pedestrian safety by the highways authority 
(Lancashire County Council), and:- 

 
    - (b) That delegated authority be granted to the Chief  

Planning and Transportation Officer to add any conditions 
appropriate to the development:- 

 
11/18/0236 Erection of 2-Storey building for commercial use (Class A1) 
Former Grand Club, Blackburn Road, Great Harwood 
 

Page 45



 
 
 

 

 
 

N.B. 1. The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer drew the Committee’s attention to 
the extra information contained within the update report which was released before the 
meeting and related to the above planning application. 
 
2. Mr Peter Hitchin, the applicant’s agent spoke at the Committee in support of the above 
planning application and against the Officer’s recommendation to refuse planning 
permission. 
 
3. Councillor Miles Parkinson spoke at the Committee in support of the above planning 
application and against the Officer’s recommendation to refuse planning permission. 
 
3. Councillor Gareth Molineux spoke at the Committee in support of the above planning 
application and against the Officer’s recommendation to refuse planning permission. 
 

159 Town and Country Planning Act 1990- Planning Applications for Determination 
 
Following a motion, a number of Members of the Committee were minded to approve the 
following planning application. The Committee requested legal advice on planning reasons 
for approval.  
 
Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved    - (2) That in accordance with section 100 a(4) and  

paragraph 5 of Schedule 12A Part 1 Local Government 
Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting whilst 
legal advice was received on this application:- 

 
Following legal advice on planning matters the meeting of the Committee resumed. 
 
Resolved    - (3) That the following planning application be  

refused in accordance with the Officers recommendation 
subject to the conditions as per the report:- 

 
11/18/0238 Major: Outline for erection of 122 No dwellings, 29 affordable units (All 
matters reserves apart from access) Resubmission of 11/18/0034 
Devine Fisheries, Broad Oak Road, Accrington 
 
N.B. 1. Mr Peter Holden spoke at the Committee in objection of the above planning 
application and in favour of the Officer’s recommendation to refuse planning permission. 
 
2. Mr Chris Betteridge, the applicant’s agent spoke at the Committee in support of the 
above planning application and against the Officer’s recommendation to refuse planning 
permission. 
  
3. Councillor Miles Parkinson spoke at the Committee in support of the above planning 
application and against the Officer’s recommendation to refuse planning permission. 
 
4. The Chair, Councillor Eamonn Higgins read a statement on behalf of Barnfield Ward 
Councillor June Harrison in objection of the above planning application and in favour of the 
Officer’s recommendation to refuse planning permission. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 46



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Signed:…………………………………………… 

 
Date: …………….………………………………………… 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 
 

 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



 
1 

 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 

 
Tuesday, 16th October, 2018 

 
Present:  Councillor June Harrison (in the Chair), Councillors Joyce Plummer (Vice 

Chair), Kath Pratt and Stewart Eaves 
 
Altham Parish Councillor Rennie Pinder 
Independent Person:  Patricia Higginbottom 
 

Apologies Jeff Scales 

  

 
177 Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillor Scales.   
 
Councillor Eaves acted as substitute representative for Councillor Scales. 
 
Councillor Plummer declared a conflict of  interest in item 3 – Grant of Dispensations due to 
her name being on the list of Councillors seeking dispensation to speak and vote on the a 
number of matters as set out in the report.  Councillor Plummer indicated that she would not 
be speaking or voting on that item. 
 

178 Minutes of Last Meeting 30th January 2017 
 
The Minutes of the last meeting of the Standards Committee held on 30th January, 2017 
were submitted for approval as a correct record. 

Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 
record.  

 
179 Grant of Dispensations 

 
The Executive Director (Legal and Democratic Services) submitted a report seeking the 
granting of dispensations to Hyndburn Councillors Josh Allen, Sara Britcliffe, Andrew Clegg, 
Marlene Haworth, Michael Miller, Jenny Molineux, Dave Parkins, Bernadette Parkinson and 
Joyce Plummer for a period of four years to enable them to speak and vote on the following 
matters (their request forms are attached):- 
 

 An allowance, payment or indemnity given to Members 

 Ceremonial honours given to Members 

 Setting Council Tax or a precept under the Local Government and Finance Act 
1992, as amended from time to time or any su0perseding legislation 

 Setting a local Council Tax reduction scheme for the purposes of the Local 
Government Finance Act 2012, as amended from time to time or any superseding 
legislation 

 Setting a local scheme for the payment of business rates, including eligibility for 
rebates and reductions, for the purposes of the Local Government Finance Act 
2012, as amended from time to time and any superseding legislation. 

 
A dispensation had already been granted to the remaining 26 Hyndburn Councillors. 

Page 49



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
Altham Parish Councillors Thomas Fearon, Anthony Hickson, Christine Lingard, Rennie 
Pinder and Joseph Threlfall had all applied for dispensations to speak and vote in respect 
of the setting of a precept under the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 as amended 
from time to time or any superseding legislation.  The individually signed request forms 
were appended to the report. 
 
Dispensations to that affect had already been granted to the remaining serving Altham 
Parish Councillor with one of the seven seats of the Parish Council being vacant.   
 
Having declared a personal interest in respect of the submitted list of dispensations, 
Councillor Plummer took no part in the vote on this item. 

Resolved (1) That, as requested, dispensations be granted to the 
above named Members of Hyndburn Borough Council 
to allow them to speak and vote on the issues set out 
above, the dispensation to expire after a period of four 
years or earlier if they ceased to be a Member of the 
Council; and   

 (2) That, as requested, dispensations be granted to the 
named Altham Parish Councillors, as set out above, to 
allow them to speak and vote on the setting of a parish 
precept under the Local Government and Finance Act 
1992 as amended from time to time or any superseding 
legislation.  The dispensation to expire after a period of 
four years or earlier if they ceased to be a Member of 
Altham Parish Council. 

 
 

180 Annual Ombudsman's Letter 2018 
 
The Executive Director (Legal and Democratic Services) submitted a report relating to the 
Annual Local Government Ombudsman’s (LGO’s) letter for 2017/18.   
 
The Local Government Ombudsman had received a low level of complaints about 
Hyndburn which made it difficult to identify trends from the statistical information provided.  
The low level of complaints might however, reflect good service delivery and/or a good 
internal complaint handling process.  The letter had not flagged up any areas of concern 
about either the Council’s services or its procedures for dealing with complaints.   
 
The Executive Director reported that in 2017/18 the LGO had received 14 complaints about 
the Council of which 11 were determined.  Attention was drawn to comparisons with 
2016/17 figures when 6 complaints were received.  Reference was made to the service 
areas to which complaints had been related most of which were to Planning.  She pointed 
out that Planning did, in general, receive the greatest number of complaints, most of which 
were related to enforcement or as a result of controversial housing developments.   
Reference was also made to comparison between the Council’s position and that of 
neighbouring District Councils over the same period.  Hyndburn Borough Council had 
received a comparable number of complaints to its neighbours.  She informed the 
Committee that of the 14 complaints submitted to the Council none had been upheld 
whereas other Authorities had had at least one complaint upheld by the Local Government 
Ombudsman.  This exercise also indicated no obvious cause for concern.   

Resolved - That the Local Government Ombudsman’s letter be 
welcomed and the report be noted. 

Page 50



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
181 Exclusion of the Public 

 

Resolved - That in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting during the following item, when it was likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be transacted, or 
the nature of the proceedings, that there would 
otherwise be disclosure of exempt information within 
the Paragraph at Schedule 12A of the Act specified at 
the item. 

 
182 Update on Submission of Complaints 

 
Exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 1 – 
Information relating to any individual 
 
The Executive Director (Legal and Democratic Services) verbally reported that there were 
currently no complaints against Councillors.  There were no previous complaints requiring 
action.   

Resolved - That the verbal report be noted. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



 
1 

 
JUDICIAL COMMITTEE (PRIVATE HIRE AND HACKNEY 

CARRIAGE LICENSING) 
 

 
Tuesday, 30th October, 2018 

 
Present:  Councillor Melissa Fisher (in the Chair), Councillors Joyce Plummer (Vice 

Chair), Stewart Eaves, Lisa Allen and Sara Britcliffe 
 

Apologies Eamonn Higgins and Terry Hurn 

  

 
183 Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillors Eamonn Higgins and Terry 
Hurn. 
 
Councillor Sara Britcliffe acted as substitute representative for Councillor Hurn. 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

184 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Judicial Committee (Private Hire and Hackney Carriage 
Licensing) held on 1st October 2018 were submitted for approval as correct record.   
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record.  
 

185 Licensing Procedure for Meetings of the Committee 
 
The General Licensing Procedure and the Complaints Licensing Procedure to be followed 
at the meeting in relation to hackney carriage and private hire driver licences were 
submitted.  Copies of the procedures had been sent to those attending the meeting. 
 
Resolved - That the Procedures be noted. 
 

186 Guidance on determining the suitability of applicants and licensees in the Hackney 
and Private Hire Trades 
 
The Institute of Licensing Policy for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire trades was 
submitted to assist HBC when determining the suitability of applicants and licensees in the  
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire trades. This replaced the previous convictions policy 
and was approved by Cabinet on the 10th October 2018. 
A copy of the new Guidance had been sent to those attending the meeting. 
 
Resolved - That the Guidelines be noted. 
 

187 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved - That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local  

Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting 
during the following items, when it was likely, in view of the 

Page 53



 
 
 

 

 
 

nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the 
proceedings, that there would otherwise be disclosure of 
exempt information within the Paragraphs at Schedule 12A of 
the Act specified at the items. 

 
188 Consideration of an existing Private Hire Driver's Licence (NP) 

 
(Exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 1 – 
Information relating to any individual) 
 
The Licensing Manager, on behalf of the Executive Director (Legal and Democratic 
Services), submitted a report informing the Committee of relevant issue relating to a 
licensed private hire driver (NP).  A complaint had been lodged against the driver and this 
was set out in the report.   
 
The following documents were appended to the report: Statement of witnesses and record 
of interviews 
 
In accordance with licensing procedure, the driver (NP) and a representative had been 
invited to attend the meeting.  The driver was in attendance alone. 
 
Attention was drawn to the policy and guidelines on the relevance of convictions.  Legal 
advice on the relevance of the incident set out in the report and the driver’s history of 
complaints/issues was sought by and provided to the Committee at the meeting. 
 
The Committee was requested to: 
 
(a) Determined whether the facts referred to in the complaint were substantially true; 
 
(b)  Having made a finding of the facts, decide whether those facts revealed if the driver 
had acted in any way which would bring into doubt his suitability to hold a driver’s licence 
with the Authority; and 
 
(c)  Determine what action, if any, should be taken against the driver. 
 
The Committee was requested to determine whether the driver was still a ‘fit and proper 
person’ to continue acting as a licensed private hire vehicle driver.   
 
Resolved - That, having taken into consideration the representations  

made by and on behalf of the Complainant and the driver the 
Committee came to the conclusion that  the complainants  
version of the event that gave rise to the complaint was 
preferable to the drivers version which was found to be 
inconsistent , contradictory and implausible  After taking into 
account the drivers previous record the Committee considered 
that the driver was not  a fit and proper person to hold a licence 
and that the private hire drivers  licence be revoked pursuant to 
Section 61(1)(b) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976, and for the reasons outlined at the 
meeting and set out in the decision notice, subject to the 
driver’s right of appeal. 

 
 
 
 

Page 54



 
 
 

 

 
 

189 Consideration of an existing Private Hire Driver's Licence (UH) 
 
(Exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 1 – 
Information relating to any individual) 
 
The Licensing Manager, on behalf of the Executive Director (Legal and Democratic 
Services), submitted a report informing the Committee of relevant issues relating to a 
licensed private hire driver (UH).  A number of issues had been lodged against the driver 
and these were set out in the report.   
 
In accordance with licensing procedure, the driver (UH) and a representative had been 
invited to attend the meeting.  The driver was in attendance alone. 
 
Attention was drawn to the policy and guidelines on the relevance of convictions.  Legal 
advice on the relevance of the incident set out in the report and the driver’s history of traffic 
offences was sought by and provided to the Committee at the meeting. 
 
The Committee was requested to: 
 
(a) Determined whether the facts referred to in the complaint were substantially true; 
 
(b)  Having made a finding of the facts, decide whether those facts revealed if the driver 
had acted in any way which would bring into doubt his suitability to hold a driver’s licence 
with the Authority; and 
 
(c)  Determine what action, if any, should be taken against the driver. 
 
The Committee was requested to determine whether the driver was still a ‘fit and proper 
person’ to continue acting as a licensed private hire vehicle driver.   
 
Resolved - That, having taken into consideration the driver’s past  

history of motoring convictions and failure to disclose 
additional penalty points on his licence at the time of application 
in order to obtain a private hire vehicle driver’s licence, the 
Committee considered that his licence be suspended for a 
period of 28 days pursuant to Section 61(1)(b) of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and he is 
required to do a driver assessment, for the reasons outlined at 
the meeting and set out in the decision notice, subject to the 
driver’s right of appeal. 

 
190 Consideration of an application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver's Licence (MK) 

 
(Exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 3  -  
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information) 
 
The Licensing Manager, on behalf of the Executive Director (Legal and Democratic 
Services) submitted a report outlining an application for a private hire vehicle driver licence.   
 
Attention was drawn to the policy and guidelines on the relevance of convictions.  Legal 
advice on the relevance of the incidents set out in the report and the applicant’s history of 
convictions was sought by and provided to the Committee at the meeting. 
 

Page 55



 
 
 

 

 
 

The following documents were appended to the report: Application form for a private hire 
licence, previous application for a private hire driver’s licence and record of interview. 
    
In accordance with licensing procedure, the applicant (MK) and a representative had been 
invited to attend the meeting.  The applicant was in attendance alone.  
 
The Committee was requested to consider whether the applicant was a fit and proper 
person to be licensed. 
 
Resolved - That, as the applicant (MK) was considered to be a ‘fit and  

proper person’, subject to him being able to pass a drugs test, 
his application for a Private Hire Vehicle Driver Licence be 
granted subject to the results of the  drugs test  and other 
Council requirements for the reasons outlined at the meeting 
and set out in the decision notice. 

 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 56



 
 

 
MANAGEMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE 

 

 
Wednesday, 31st October, 2018 

 
Present:  Councillor Miles Parkinson (in the Chair), Councillors Paul Cox and 

Tony Dobson 
 

Apologies  

  

 
191 Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
There were no apologies for absence or substitutions. 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

192 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Management Review Committee held on the 2nd August 
2018 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

193 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved    - That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local 

Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting during the following items, when it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the proceedings that there 
will otherwise be disclosure of exempt information within 
the Paragraph at Schedule 12A of the Act specified at the 
items. 

 
194 Changes to Senior Management Structure 

 
Exempt Information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 3 – 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information) 
 
Resolved - That the Management Review Committee agreed the 

proposals as outlined in the report. 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: Council   

DATE: 15 November 2018 

REPORT AUTHOR: Michael Cunliffe, Senior Corporate Support Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Motions for debate at Council –  

1. Breaking Point Campaign 

2. Implement the modern day slavery charter at 
Hyndburn Borough Council 

3. Universal Credits 

4. Transport 

5. Blackpool Airport 

EXEMPT REPORT:  No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication: n/a 

 
Council will be asked to consider the following motions submitted under Council Procedure Rule A9:- 
 
1. Breaking Point Campaign 
 
That this Council notes that many council budgets are now at Breaking Point. Austerity has caused 
huge damage to communities up and down the UK, with devastating effects on key public services 
that protect the most defenceless in society – children at risk, disabled adults and vulnerable older 
people – and the services we all rely on, like clean streets, libraries, and children’s centres; 
 

• Tory cuts mean councils have lost 60p out of every £1 that the last Labour Government was spending 
on local government in 2010; 

• Councils had to spend an extra £800m last year to meet the demand on vital services to protect 
children by over; 

• With an aging population and growing demand adult social care faces a gap of £3.5 billion – with only 
14% of council workers now confident that vulnerable local residents are safe and cared for 

• Government cuts have seen over 500 children’s centres and 475 libraries close, potholes are left 
unfilled, and 80% of councils workers now say have no confidence in the future of local services 

• Northamptonshire has already gone bust due to Tory incompetence at both national and local level, 
and more councils are predicted to collapse without immediate emergency funding  

• Councils now face a further funding gap of £7.8 billion by 2025 just to keep services ‘standing still’ and 
meeting additional demand. Even Lord Gary Porter, the Conservative Chair of the Local Government 
Association, has said ‘Councils can no longer be expected to run our vital local services on a 
shoestring’ 
 
This Council condemns Chief Secretary to the Treasury Liz Truss for stating on BBC Newsnight on 1st 
October 2018 that the government is “not making cuts to local authorities”, when all independent 
assessments of government spending show that this is entirely false; and that this Council further 
notes that Prime Minister Theresa May has also claimed that “austerity is over” despite planning a 
further £1.3bn of cuts to council budgets over the next year; 
 

Page 59

Agenda Item 9.



 

This Council agrees with the aims of the ‘Breaking Point’ petition signed by labour councillors across 
the country, in calling for the Prime Minister and Chancellor to truly end austerity in local government 
by: 
 

 Using the Budget to reverse next years planned £1.3bn cut to council budgets; 

 Immediately investing £2bn in children’s services and £2bn in adult social care to stop these 
vital emergency services from collapsing; 

 Pledging to use the Spending Review to restore council funding to 2010 levels over the next 
four years. 
 
This Council resolves to: 
 

 Support the ‘Breaking Point’ campaign, recognising the devastating impact that austerity has 
had on our local community 

 Ask the Leader of the Council to write to the Chancellor of the Exchequer, the Prime Minister, 
and the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government setting out the 
funding pressures faced by our local council, and calling on the Government to truly end 
austerity in local government 

 
Proposer: Councillor Miles Parkinson 
Seconder: Councillor Paul Cox 
 
Submitted on: 5th October 2018 
 
 
2. Implement the modern day slavery charter at Hyndburn Borough Council 
 
Modern day slavery is a scourge on our society, and together, we will end it, holding the Government 
on its implementation and enforcement of the Modern Slavery Act, and in particular, section 54 which 
requires businesses to publish a statement on modern slavery. Collectively, local authorities in 
England spend more than £40bn per year procuring goods and services our behalf. From car washes 
to cleaning and construction, councils do business with literally hundreds of different suppliers–both 
big and small. Many of those firms will have contractors and suppliers of their own too. 
 
This motion moves that Hyndburn Borough Council will implement the modern day slavery charter: 
  

1. Train its corporate procurement team to understand modern slavery through the Chartered 
Institute of Procurement and Supply’s (CIPS) online course on Ethical Procurement and 
Supply.  

2. Require its contractors to comply fully with the Modern Slavery Act 2015, wherever it applies, 
with contract termination as a potential sanction for non-compliance.  

3. Challenge any abnormally low-cost tenders to ensure they do not rely upon the potential 
contractor practising modern slavery.  

4. Highlight to its suppliers that contracted workers are free to join a trade union and are not to be 
treated unfairly for belonging to one.  

5. Publicise its whistle-blowing system for staff to blow the whistle on any suspected examples of 
modern slavery.  

6. Require its tendered contractors to adopt a whistle-blowing policy which enables their staff to 
blow the whistle on any suspected examples of modern slavery.  

7. Review its contractual spending regularly to identify any potential issues with modern slavery.  
8. Highlight for its suppliers any risks identified concerning modern slavery and refer them to the 

relevant agencies to be addressed.  
9. Refer for investigation via the National Crime Agency’s national referral mechanism any of its 

contractors identified as a cause for concern regarding modern slavery.  
Page 60



 

10. Report publicly on the implementation of this policy annually. 
 
Proposer: Councillor Glen Harrison 
Seconder: Councillor Stewart Eaves 
 
Submitted on: 22nd October 2018 
 
 
3. Universal Credits 
 
Despite knowing Universal Credit causes serious problems for claimants, this Conservative 
government is pressing ahead and rolling it out to thousands of people who will have to wait to receive 
any money. Claimants are descending into debt, relying on food banks, getting into rent arrears and in 
many cases getting evicted from their homes because of in built problems with universal credit. 
 
Universal credit replaces five benefits- child tax credit, housing benefit, income support, income based 
jobseekers allowance, Income related employment and support allowance and working tax credit.  
 
According to Citizens advice in Hyndburn they state that 33% of all cases are around benefits with 
34% dealing with debt. 
 
In Hyndburn there is a significant increase in problems arising from Universal credit, people whom are 
experiencing financial difficulty can invariably lead to homelessness. Only 1% of people requiring 
support from citizen’s advice contacts them via email, with 73% contacting them face to face. 
 
17% of UC claimants are still waiting more than 5 weeks to receive their full payment. 
People not being paid on time are 23% more likely to get into debt  
 Online claiming process is problematic, 25% of the people Citizens advice help take a week or more 
to complete the claim online. 
 
Complexity of managing online journals can lead to delays in payments, sanction and suspensions in 
payments especially for people who are disadvantaged. 2 out of 5 people find that providing evidence 
of housing costs is difficult  
 
 Advance payments are available but claimants can have difficulty managing their finances going 
forwards  
 
Hyndburn Borough Council calls on this government to: 
 

 Abandon the long waits for claimants to receive money 

 Allow people to apply for universal credits at the job centre, not just online 

 Provide people with better help when the system fails them 

 Pay landlords directly to stop people getting into rent arrears and losing their homes 

 End benefit sanctions for in work and out of work claimants 

 Stop payments going to one named person of a household. 

 Make work pay-universal credit takes 63p in every £1 people earn. 
 
Proposer: Councillor Glen Harrison 
Seconder: Councillor Stewart Eaves 
 
Submitted on:     25th October 2018 
 
 

Page 61



 

4. Transport 
 
That this council resolves to write to the Department of Transport and Transport for the North to 
highlight to them the recent report by the National Infrastructure Commission that placed Accrington 
and Rossendale as 26th most congested place in the country and the first non-city in the list.  
 
This council has been at the forefront for calling infrastructure investment in East Lancashire through a 
rail and road Infrastructure programme. The lack of infrastructure investment is having a detrimental 
impact on the area as this report highlights and reinforces the message transport connectivity is key in 
driving economic growth and area regeneration.  
 
We, the council, reinforce our messages that the following infrastructure projects be given serious 
consideration: 
 
1. The re-establishment of the Skipton to Colne Rail Line. 
2. The expansion of the M65 to linking into Yorkshire and to the A1 (M) including a link to Leeds 
Bradford Airport. 
3. The upgrade of the A56 from the M65 to the M66 into full motorway with upgrade capacity of 3 
lanes. 
 
Proposer: Councillor Noordad Aziz 
Seconder: Councillor Munsif Dad 
 
Submitted on:     7th November 2018 
 
 

5. Blackpool Airport 
 
That this council resolves to write to the Department of Transport and Blackpool Airport in support of 
Blackpool Airport recommencement as a commercial airport and operating as passenger flights, 
Intercity hoppers and European destinations as well as for freight should be considered as a way of 
making the airport viable .  
 
This council has been at the forefront for calling infrastructure investment in East Lancashire through a 
rail and road Infrastructure programme, this now needs to encompass air transport for Lancashire.  
 
The lack of infrastructure investment is having a detrimental impact on the area and we need 
additional ways of improving transport connectivity as this is key in driving economic growth and area 
regeneration. 
 
Proposer: Councillor Noordad Aziz 
Seconder: Councillor Munsif Dad 
 
Submitted on:     7th November 2018 
 

Page 62


	Agenda
	4. Confirmation of Minutes
	6. Report of Urgent Council Decision: Proposed new rail passenger service from Leeds to East Lancashire
	7. Minutes of Cabinet
	Minutes

	8. Minutes of Committees
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 11/09/2018 Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	Minutes

	Minutes , 12/09/2018 Planning Committee
	Minutes Public Pack, 01/10/2018 Judicial Committee (Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Licensing)
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 05/10/2018 Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	Minutes

	Minutes , 10/10/2018 Planning Committee
	Minutes , 16/10/2018 Standards Committee
	Minutes , 30/10/2018 Judicial Committee (Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Licensing)
	Minutes , 31/10/2018 Management Review Committee

	9. Motion(s) submitted on Notice

